
Hamilton County Board of County Commissioners

Commissioner Graham

AGENDA July 16, 2014

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION -

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG - Commissioner Graham

Minutes Recessed Meeting and Agenda Session Minutes - June 25, 2014

Minutes Regular Meeting Minutes - July 2, 2014

Res. No. 714-29 A Resolution to approve and accept applications for notary public positions,  the bond of
Hamilton County 911 Emergency Communications district, and oath of Deputy Sheriff.

Report Juvenile Court Clerk Report - May 2014

Res. No. 714-21 A Resolution ratifying the purchase of gasoline and diesel fuel for the period of May 1, 2014,
through May 31, 2014, and to authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to
implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 714-22 A Resolution accepting the bid of Potters Industries, LLC for one (1) year contract pricing,
beginning August 17, 2014, through August 16, 2015, for reflective glass beads for the Highway
Department and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this
Resolution.

Res. No. 714-23 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to sign all documents necessary to convey right of
way, permanent drainage and temporary construction easements to the City of Chattanooga to
facilitate roadway improvements for portions of Bonny Oaks Drive and Volkswagen Drive, known
as the Volkswagen State Industrial Access (SIA) expansion project.

Res. No. 714-24 A Resolution accepting the proposal of Playcore Holdings, Inc. dba Playcore Wisconsin, Inc. &
GameTime for playground equipment for Lookout Valley Elementary School amounting to
$34,998.00 and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this
Resolution.

Res. No. 714-25 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor on behalf of Hamilton County Tennessee, the Health
Services Division, operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department to enter
into and execute a continuation contract for $537,000.00 with the Tennessee Department of
Health for the provision of Bioterrorism Preparedness Activities for the 12 month time period
beginning July 1, 2014 – June 30, 2015.

Res. No. 714-26 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to sign an agreement in the amount of $50,000 with
the Chattanooga Area Urban League to provide certain contract compliance services for a
contract period beginning July 1, 2014 and ending June 30, 2015.

Res. No. 714-27 A Resolution to authorize payment of $20,000.00 to Brandon Carter and his attorneys, Houston
& Ziebold for bodily injury incurred as a result of an automobile accident with a Hamilton County
Parks & Recreation vehicle.

Res. No. 714-28 A Resolution to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District & R-2 Residential District to R-1 Single
Family Residential District, property located at 2016 Ooltewah-Ringgold Road.



ANNOUNCEMENTS

DELEGATIONS ON MATTERS OTHER THAN ZONING

Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Commission
meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, to and for the
benefit of the Commission.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Commission
and do not necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the
Commission in part or as a whole.  No member of the community is required to
attend or participate in the invocation and such decision will have no impact on
their right to actively participate in the business of the Commission.





HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 2, 2014 
 

 1 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Regular Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  July 2, 2014 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 2nd day of July, 2014, a Regular Meeting of 

the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the Courthouse, 

in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the following 

proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Fred Skillern, Chairman.  County Clerk 

Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Henry, and Chairman Skillern.  Commissioner Mackey arrived 

during the invocation.  Total present - 9.  Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his  

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

Attached hereto is a copy of the Public Notice of this meeting, which was 

published in a local newspaper and made a matter of record of this meeting. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 2, 2014 
 

 2 

Commissioner Graham welcomed Pastor Mark McCrory, First Lutheran Church, 

who gave the invocation.  Commissioner Graham led in the pledge to the flag.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Henry, that 

the minutes of the Recessed Meeting of June 11, 2014, the Agenda Preparation 

Session of June 11, 2014, and the Regular Meeting of June 18, 2014, be approved, 

treat same as read, made a matter of record and filed.  The foregoing Motion was 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  

Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-1  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT 

APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Bankston, to 

adopt Resolution No. 714-1.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 2, 2014 
 

 3 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” 

votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

Chairman Skillern asked that Resolutions No. 714-2, 714-3, 714-3A, and 714-4 

be considered together at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-2  A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF PRINT 

ON DEMAND PRINTERS AND THE REQUIRED WAX RESIN RIBBONS 

AMOUNTING TO $26,200 FROM BUSINESS INFORMATION SYSTEMS AND TO 

AMEND COUNTY CLERK’S REVENUE BUDGET IN THE AMOUNT OF $11,000 AND 

THE OPERATING EXPENSE BUDGET BY $26,200 AND AUTHORIZING THE 

COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-3  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE A CONTRACT BETWEEN 

THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE AND THE CITY OF LAKESITE, TENNESSEE, IN ORDER 

TO PROVIDE POLICE SERVICES AND RELATED VEHICLE EXPENSES 

BEGINNING JULY 1, 2014 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2015, WHICH IS MUTUALLY 

RENEWABLE FOR AN ADDITIONAL TWENTY FOUR MONTHS. ADDITIONALLY 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 2, 2014 
 

 4 

THE CITY OF LAKESITE WILL REIMBURSE THE PURCHASE OF TWO 

AUTOMOBILES, TO COVER THE THREE YEAR PERIOD. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-3A  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE A CONTRACT 

BETWEEN THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE AND THE CITY OF LAKESITE, TENNESSEE, 

IN ORDER TO PROVIDE POLICE SERVICES AND RELATED VEHICLE EXPENSES 

BEGINNING JULY 1, 2014 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2015, WHICH IS MUTUALLY 

RENEWABLE FOR AN ADDITIONAL TWENTY FOUR MONTHS. ADDITIONALLY 

THE CITY OF LAKESITE WILL REIMBURSE THE PURCHASE OF TWO 

AUTOMOBILES, TO COVER THE THREE YEAR PERIOD. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-4  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE UNIT PRICE BID OF 

SHIELDS ELECTRONICS SUPPLY, INC. FOR DOOR ACCESS MATERIALS FOR 

THE PERIOD BEGINNING JULY 2, 2014 THROUGH JULY 1, 2015 FOR THE 

TELECOMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY 

MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

Commissioner Graham provided details regarding Resolutions No. 714-2, 714-

3A, and 714-4. He noted that Resolution No. 714-2 had been heard by a Committee of 

the Whole.  Resolutions No. 714-3A and 714-4 had been reviewed by the Finance 

Committee and recommended for approval.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 2, 2014 
 

 5 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Bankston, 

to adopt Resolutions No. 714-2, 714-3A, and 714-4.  The foregoing Resolutions were 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  

Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

 Chairman Skillern asked that Resolution No. 714-18 had been added as a late 

item. He asked that the Resolution be considered at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-18  A RESOLUTION TO MAKE CERTAIN FINDINGS 

RELATING TO THE CHATTEM CHEMICALS, INC., PROJECT, TO DELEGATE 

CERTAIN AUTHORITY TO THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF THE 

CITY OF CHATTANOOGA AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO ENTER 

INTO AND EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT FOR PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF AD VALOREM 

TAXES. 

 

 Steve Hiatt, with the Chattanooga Chamber of Commerce, provided details 

regarding this item. Phase one of the expansion would result in between $6,000,000 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 2, 2014 
 

 6 

and $8,000,000 of personal property growth. The four year pilot agreement would 

create 25 new jobs with an average salary of $43,500 per year before benefits. There 

was also an option written into the agreement that will allow them to enter phase two 

provided they notify both the County Mayor and City of Chattanooga Mayor, as well as 

the Industrial Development Board. The second phase would be an investment between 

$10,000,000 to $15,000,000 and create 25 new jobs with similar wages. The second 

phase would be a five year pilot agreement. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 714-18.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” 

votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

Chairman Skillern asked that Resolutions No. 714-5 through 714-7 be 

considered together at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-5  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE UNIT PRICE BIDS OF 

ACCU-TECH, DCO DISTRIBUTION, INC., DIVERSIFIED SUPPLY, INC., GRAYBAR 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 2, 2014 
 

 7 

ELECTRIC COMPANY, KENDALL ELECTRIC, AND SHIELDS ELECTRONICS 

SUPPLY, INC., BEGINNING JULY 2, 2014, THROUGH JULY 1, 2016, FOR 

MISCELLANEOUS VOICE AND DATA TELECOMMUNICATIONS MATERIALS FOR 

THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 

MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-6  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO SIGN A CONTRACT IN THE AMOUNT OF $60,000 WITH THE CITY OF 

CHATTANOOGA FOR THE HAMILTON COUNTY COURTS COMMUNITY SERVICE 

PROGRAM WITH A TERM BEGINNING JULY 1, 2014 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2015. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-7  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO SIGN A CONTRACT IN THE AMOUNT OF $185,230.75 WITH THE TENNESSEE 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE HAMILTON COUNTY COURTS 

COMMUNITY SERVICE PROGRAM WITH A CONTRACT PERIOD BEGINNING JULY 

01, 2014 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2015 

 

Commissioner Graham provided details regarding Resolutions No. 714-5 through 

714-7 and stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended approval.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 2, 2014 
 

 8 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolutions No. 714-5 through 714-7.  The foregoing Resolutions were 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  

Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

Chairman Skillern asked that Resolutions No. 714-12 and 714-13 be considered 

together at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-12  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT TO CONTINUE SUBCONTRACT AGREEMENTS WITH THE 

PARTNERSHIP FOR FAMILIES, CHILDREN AND ADULTS, INC. AND SIGNAL 

CENTERS, INC. BEGINNING JULY 1, 2014 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2015, TO 

PROVIDE TITLE XX SOCIAL SERVICES FOR ELIGIBLE INDIVIDUALS AND 

FAMILIES AMOUNTING TO $330,000. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 2, 2014 
 

 9 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-13  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT TO ACCEPT AN AGREEMENT BEGINNING JULY 1, 2014 AND 

ENDING ON JUNE 30, 2015, BETWEEN HAMILTON COUNTY AND THE CITY OF 

CHATTANOOGA IN THE AMOUNT OF $23,306.00 TO PROVIDE FINANCIAL 

ASSISTANCE TO FAMILIES AND INDIVIDUALS TO PREVENT THOSE FAMILIES 

AND INDIVIDUALS FROM BECOMING HOMELESS AND TO AMEND THE 

EXPENSE AND REVENUE BUDGETS BY ADDING $8,306.00. 

 

Commissioner Graham provided details regarding Resolutions No. 714-12 and 

714-13 and stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended approval.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolutions No. 714-12 and 714-13.  The foregoing Resolutions were 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  

Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 2, 2014 
 

 10 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-8  A RESOLUTION TO DECLARE THE FORMER ARMY 

RESERVE CENTER PROPERTY LOCATED ON EAST 23RD STREET AND JOINTLY-

OWNED BY HAMILTON COUNTY AND THE CITY OF CHATTANOOGA AS 

SURPLUS, TO ACCEPT A PROPOSAL FROM ROCKY TOP ENTERPRISES LLC, 

AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO NEGOTIATE A REAL ESTATE 

PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR THE SALE PRICE OF $157,348. 

 

Chairman Skillern reported that Resolution No. 714-8 had been heard by a 

Committee of the Whole. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Henry, to 

adopt Resolution No. 714-8.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” 

votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 2, 2014 
 

 11 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-9  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE ARCHITECTURAL FIRMS 

FOR THE DESIGN OF ONE NEW SCHOOL AND THREE ADDITIONS TO EXISTING 

SCHOOLS. 

 

Chairman Skillern reported that Resolution No. 714-9 had been heard by a 

Committee of the Whole. He announced that he would be voting against the Resolution. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution No. 714-9.  The motion was not voted on at this time. 

 

Commissioner Boyd reported that he had the privilege of working over the years 

with each of the architectural firms working on these four school projects. He stated he 

felt confident in his support of these firms. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Nay”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman 

Skillern, “Nay”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 7.  Total “Nay” 

votes – 2.   

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 2, 2014 
 

 12 

 

Chairman Skillern asked that Resolutions No. 714-10, 714-11, and 714-14 be 

considered together at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-10  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO SIGN A LEASE AGREEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $9,445.00 ANNUALLY WITH 

CHATTANOOGA CHURCH MINISTRIES, INC. D.B.A., CHATTANOOGA 

COMMUNITY KITCHEN FOR SPACE FOR USE BY HAMILTON COUNTY, 

TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE 

CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT’S HOMELESS 

HEALTH CARE CENTER, FOR THE PERIOD OF JANUARY 1, 2014 THROUGH 

DECEMBER 31, 2014. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-11  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT TO CONTINUE AN AGREEMENT BEGINNING JULY 1, 2014 AND 

ENDING JUNE 30, 2015, BETWEEN HAMILTON COUNTY AND THE TENNESSEE 

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES TO PROVIDE ADULT DAYCARE AND 

HOMEMAKER SERVICES FOR ELIGIBLE INDIVIDUALS AND FAMILIES 

AMOUNTING TO $330,000. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 2, 2014 
 

 13 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-14  A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE 

HAMILTON COUNTY EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK. 

 

Commissioner Graham provided details regarding Resolutions No. 714-10, 714-

11, and 714-14 and stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended 

approval.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolutions No. 714-10, 714-11, and 714-14.  The foregoing Resolutions were 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  

Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-15  A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE EXPENDITURES AT 

THE DISCRETION OF THE INDIVIDUAL MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY 

COMMISSION IN AN AGGREGATE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED NINE HUNDRED 

THOUSAND DOLLARS ($900,000) FROM THE COUNTY LINE OF CREDIT TO BE 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 2, 2014 
 

 14 

USED EXCLUSIVELY FOR PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL PROJECTS AS DEFINED BY 

TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED SECTION 9-21-105. 

 

Chairman Skillern reported that Resolution No. 714-15 had been heard by a 

Committee of the Whole. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 714-15.  The motion was not voted on at this time. 

 

 Commissioner Mackey noted that by designating these funds exclusively for 

public works capital projects, Commissioners would no longer be able to use 

discretionary funds to assist community groups such as 501(c)(3) organizations. He 

shared a concern that youth organizations and other civic groups would no longer be 

able to benefit from this special funding.  

 

 Chairman Skillern pointed out that because the source of funding would be the 

County line of credit, rather than from the general fund, this would help make a 2.5% 

employee salary increase possible. 

 

 Commissioners Graham and Henry indicated their intent to support this item, 

noting it had been their understanding that the discretionary funds had always been 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 2, 2014 
 

 15 

intended for public works projects.  This Resolution would help clarify the intent of its 

use. 

 

 Commissioner Mackey stated that there was an inequality among many youth 

residing in the urban County communities. He suggested that the Resolution be 

deferred allowing Commissioners the opportunity to visit various areas to determine the 

effect of this change. 

 

 Commissioner Beck noted that in years past, certain discretionary funds had 

gone towards funding a summer work program for youth which greatly benefited the 

community. He stated that numerous public works programs in his district could also be 

assisted from this funding as well. He emphasized the importance of building and 

enriching lives over the building of new facilities.  He indicated his intent to abstain from 

voting on this matter. 

 

 Mayor Coppinger pointed out that no other county in the state of Tennessee 

allotted discretionary spending for each Commissioner. He believed that designating 

these funds towards public works projects was the most fiscally responsible use of 

these taxpayer dollars. 

 

 Commissioner Haynes stated that this was one of the many difficult decisions the 

Commission faced. He noted that he often reached out to members or groups in his 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 2, 2014 
 

 16 

district to build partnerships benefiting the community and civic organizations - but now 

they would have to seek other sources for assistance. 

 

 Upon request for clarification by Commissioner Graham, Finance Administrator 

Albert Kiser responded that Commissioners could utilize unused out of town or local 

travel expenses as they saw fit in their districts. Each Commissioner is allotted $12,500 

annually for travel expense. 

 

 Commissioner Fields noted that since the Commission had already adopted the 

budget, it was his understanding that there was currently no other source for 

discretionary spending this fiscal year other than the line of credit. If the Commission did 

not adopt the Resolution today, he was uncertain what the procedure would be for 

Commission members to obtain these discretionary funds. 

 

 Chairman Skillern stated that there were many public works needs throughout 

the County. He shared his belief that this Resolution would help alleviate some pressure 

for Commissioners on how this money could be utilized. 

 

The previous motion by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner 

Boyd was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Beck, “Abstain”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 2, 2014 
 

 17 

“Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Nay”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total 

present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 1.  Total 

Abstentions – 1.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-16  A RESOLUTION TO REAPPOINT T. W. FRANCESCON 

JR., AND WILLIAM MADISON AND TO APPOINT MIRANDA PEREZ AND MANUEL 

"MANNY" RICO TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY EMPLOYEE APPEALS BOARD FOR 

TERMS AS INDICATED RESPECTIVELY. 

 

Resolution No. 714-16 confirms the reappointments of T. W. Francescon Jr. and 

William Madison, and appoints Miranda Perez and Manuel “Manny” Rico to the 

Hamilton County Employee Appeals Board for terms as indicated respectively. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Bankston, 

to adopt Resolution No. 714-16.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted 

on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being 

present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total 

“Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 2, 2014 
 

 18 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-17  A RESOLUTION TO APPOINT CONSTANCE J. 

WILLIAMS TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH AND SAFETY BOARD TO FILL 

THE VACANCY CREATED BY THE RESIGNATION OF ROBERT LEWIS WHICH 

WAS SCHEDULED TO EXPIRE ON JANUARY 19, 2015. 

 

Resolution No. 714-17 confirms the appointment of Constance J. Williams to the 

Hamilton County Health and Safety Board for a term expiring January 19, 2015. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 714-17.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” 

votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-20  A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXTENSION OF A 

CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT WITH KENNETH U. JORDAN, II, FOR THE 

POSITION AS EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY OFFICER FOR HAMILTON 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 2, 2014 
 

 19 

COUNTY, TENNESSEE, FOR AN ADDITIONAL TWO (2) YEAR PERIOD (TO EXPIRE 

ON JUNE 30, 2016). 

 

 Chairman Skillern stated that this Resolution was a late item to be heard by a 

Committee of the Whole. 

 

 Commissioner Beck asked whether the Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) 

office currently submitted any report to the Commission reflecting the number of cases 

handled each year or other services rendered. 

 

 Mayor Coppinger responded that if the Commission desired, this item could be 

postponed until next week in order to have Mr. Jordan answer any questions the 

Commission may have.   

 

Human Resources Director Alecia Poe added that the EEO office handled 

complaints or issues related to protected characteristics such as race or religion. She 

stated that Mr. Jordan would likely have a report reflecting the number of cases handled 

each year he could provide if needed. Because of confidentiality requirements, specifics 

of these cases could not be shared. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 2, 2014 
 

 20 

Upon questioning by Commissioner Graham, Mayor Coppinger informed the 

Commission that Mr. Jordan’s salary would remain at $50,000 per year, plus the 2.5% 

increase recently given to County employees. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

adopt Resolution No. 714-20.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” 

votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-19  A RESOLUTION PROHIBITING THE POSTING OF 

POLITICAL CAMPAIGN SIGNS, ANNOUNCEMENTS, AND ENDORSEMENTS 

WITHIN AND ON HAMILTON COUNTY OWNED BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS. 

 

 Chairman Skillern stated that at his request, this late item had been drafted by 

the County Attorney. He noted that if the Commission desired, the Resolution could be 

heard by a Committee of the Whole today and voted on either today or at a Recessed 

Meeting next week. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 2, 2014 
 

 21 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Henry, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

adopt Resolution No. 714-19.  The motion was not voted on at this time. 

  

 Commissioner Boyd stated that there were currently a large number of political 

campaign signs at the Election Commission.  He questioned whether it was the intent of 

this Resolution to prohibit posting of signs at this site. 

 

 Chairman Skillern pointed out that certain State laws already prohibited the 

posting of signs on right-of-ways, although this law was not often obeyed. 

Commissioner Graham expressed a desire that the prohibition not include signs on the 

Election Commission grounds presently permitted.  

 

 Attorney Taylor responded that in its current form, this Resolution would prohibit 

posting of campaign signs on all Hamilton County owned buildings and grounds, 

including the Election Commission. He indicated that if it were the desire of the 

Commission, the language could be amended to exclude certain areas. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham seconded by Commissioner Bankston, to 

amend Resolution No. 714-19 to allow political signs to be posted on County grounds 

where a polling site exists.  The motion was not voted on at this time. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 2, 2014 
 

 22 

 Commissioner Beck asked who would be responsible for the removal of any 

campaign signs on County owned property. 

 

 Chairman Skillern responded that in speaking with Mayor Coppinger, custodial 

and grounds staff would assist in the removal of these signs. 

 

 Upon questioning by Commissioner Fields, Attorney Taylor indicated that he was 

in agreement with the Resolution and proposed amendment. 

 

 The foregoing motion to amend Resolution No. 714-19 was unanimously adopted 

on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being 

present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total 

“Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

 Chairman Skillern asked that a roll call vote be conducted for Resolution No. 

714-19, as amended. 

 

The foregoing Resolution No. 714-19, as amended, was unanimously adopted on 

a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 2, 2014 
 

 23 

and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” 

votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

Clerk Knowles asked that the following reports be entered into the record. 

Chairman Skillern so ordered. 

 

TRUSTEE’S EXCESS FEE REPORT 

 

The Trustee’s excess fee report for May 2014 was submitted and made a matter 

of record.  

 

TRUSTEE’S MONTHLY REPORT 

 

The Trustee’s monthly report for May 2014 was submitted and made a matter of 

record.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 2, 2014 
 

 24 

CRIMINAL COURT CLERK REPORT 

 

The Criminal Court Clerk report for the month of May 2014 were submitted and 

made a matter of record.  

 

JUVENILE COURT CLERK REPORT 

 

The Juvenile Court Clerk report for the month of April 2014 were submitted and 

made a matter of record.  

 

MEMORANDUM RE: PAYMENTS TO ATTORNEY CHRIS CLEM 

 

 As per Chairman Skillern’s request, a memorandum from Finance Administrator 

Albert Kiser was submitted regarding payments made by the County to the law firm 

Samples, Jennings, Ray & Clem PLLC of which attorney Chris Clem is associated.  

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Skillern asked for announcements from members of the Commission.  

 

Members of the Commission, County Attorney Taylor, and Mayor Coppinger 

wished everyone a safe and happy Independence Day weekend. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 2, 2014 
 

 25 

 

Commissioner Graham mentioned the recent passing of Dot Adams, the wife of 

former Commissioner Curtis Adams, and Earl Keeling the father of Chief Deputy County 

Clerk Debbie Rollins, as well as two citizens in his district.  Several members of the 

Commission asked that the families of these individuals be kept in everyone’s thoughts 

and prayers during this difficult time. 

 

Attorney Taylor requested that members of the Commission meet with him in the 

adjacent conference room immediately following adjournment of today’s meeting to 

discuss a brief legal matter. 

 

Commissioner Fields invited everyone to attend the Signal Mountain July 4th 

parade this Friday.  He noted there would be a Signal Mountain Lions Club barbeque 

and a performance of “The King and I” play at the Signal Mountain Playhouse this 

weekend as well. 

 

Commissioner Henry invited anyone interested to attend a July 4th fireworks 

display in Collegedale at Veterans Memorial Park on Thursday, July 3. 

 

County Trustee Bill Hullander announced that July was National Beef Month.  He 

reported that there were currently 2,100,000 farms throughout the country, 68,000 in 

Tennessee, and nearly 1,000 acres of farming land in Hamilton County.  He introduced 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 2, 2014 
 

 26 

Amy Johnson, with the Hamilton County Soil Conservation District, who distributed 

related information to the Commission. Trustee Hullander invited members of the 

Commission and Mayor Coppinger to visit his office following today’s meeting to pick up 

a pound of locally owned ground beef he brought for each member. 

 

Ms. Johnson provided details regarding an upcoming Hamilton County farm tour 

and invited members of the Commission to attend. The purpose of this tour was to 

connect local businesses and farmers. 

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Skillern asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There 

were none. 

 

There being no further business, Chairman Skillern declared the meeting in 

recess until Wednesday, July 9, 2014 at 9:30 AM.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 2, 2014 
 

 27 

Respectfully submitted: 

 
      

____________________________________    
     William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

Approved: 
   

_______   
Date     Clerk’s Initials 

 
 



RECESSED MEETING AND 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

JUNE 25, 2014 
 

 

 1 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting and 
       Agenda Preparation Session 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  June 25, 2014 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 25th day of June, 2014, a Recessed Meeting 

and Agenda Preparation Session of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was 

begun and held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County 

Commission Room, when the following proceedings were held, to wit: -- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Fred Skillern, Chairman. County Clerk 

Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner 

Henry, and Chairman Skillern.  Commissioners Boyd and Mackey were not in 

attendance. Total present - 7.  Total absent – 2. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his  

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 Commissioner Haynes welcomed Pastor Gary Armes, Hickory Valley Christian 

Church, who gave the invocation.  Commissioner Haynes led in the pledge to the flag.  



RECESSED MEETING AND 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

JUNE 25, 2014 
 

 

 2 

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

 

Chairman Skillern indicated the upcoming agenda items would be considered as 

follows: 

 

• Resolution No. 714-1 was the usual County Clerk item regarding notaries, etc.  
This required no committee assignment. 

• A Criminal Court Clerk Report for May 2014 would be submitted as a matter of 
record. 

• A Juvenile Court Clerk Report for April 2014 would be submitted as a matter of 
record. 

• The County Trustee’s Monthly Report and Excess Fee Report for May 2014 
would be submitted as a matter of record. 

• Resolutions No. 714-3 through 714-7, and 714-10 through 714-13 were assigned 
to the Finance Committee, chaired by Commissioner Graham.  

• Resolutions No. 714-2, 8, 9, 15, 16, and 17 were heard by a Committee of the 
Whole. 

 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 714-8 

 

 Commissioner Graham spoke regarding this Resolution, which would declare the 

former Army Reserve Center property on East 23rd Street as surplus. This property is 

currently jointly owned with the City of Chattanooga.  The Resolution would also accept 

a proposal from Rocky Top Enterprises, LLC and authorize the County Mayor to 

negotiate a Real Estate Purchase Agreement for the sale price of $157,348. 

 



RECESSED MEETING AND 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

JUNE 25, 2014 
 

 

 3 

 Nick Wilkinson, City of Chattanooga Deputy Administrator of Economic 

Development, provided additional details regarding the proposal.  

 

 Upon questioning by Commissioner Graham, Mr. Wilkinson confirmed that 

approximately one acre at the back of the property would not be included as part of the 

sale. 

 

 Eddie Anderson, President of Stringfellow Inc. and General Manager of Rocky 

Top Enterprises, addressed the Commission regarding this issue. He stated that the 

property would be utilized as a truck equipment center. Mr. Anderson gave a brief 

outline of his history with both Stringfellow Inc. and Rocky Top Enterprises. He also 

reported that an agreement had been made with the Vietnam Veterans of America have 

use of one of the buildings on the property for one dollar a year. The Vietnam Veterans 

group would be responsible for maintenance and liability insurance of the building. 

 

 Commissioner Graham stated that in December 2013 the Commission had 

approved a Resolution for a lease agreement with Vietnam Veterans of America for a 

similar one dollar per year term.  He added that the Rocky Top Enterprises project 

would create approximately 25 new jobs.  

 



RECESSED MEETING AND 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

JUNE 25, 2014 
 

 

 4 

 Upon questioning by Commissioner Fields, Mr. Anderson responded that their 

bid was considered the highest and best bid for the property. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 714-9 

 

 Resolution No. 714-9 was heard as a Committee of the Whole. This Resolution 

would approve architectural firms for the design of a new school for Ganns Middle 

Valley Elementary and three additions to existing schools at Nolan Elementary, Sale 

Creek Middle/High, and Wolftever Elementary. There was no discussion regarding this 

matter. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 714-15 

 

 Chairman Skillern spoke regarding this Resolution, which would authorize 

expenditures at the discretion of individual Commission members in an aggregate 

amount not to exceed $900,000 from the County line of credit to be used exclusively for 

public works capital projects. He stated that this was a housekeeping matter, as the 

funding source would come from bond money. 

 



RECESSED MEETING AND 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

JUNE 25, 2014 
 

 

 5 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 714-16 AND 714-17 

 

 County Attorney Rheubin Taylor spoke regarding Resolutions No. 714-16 and 

714-17, which would appoint and reappointment members to the Hamilton County 

Employee Appeals Board and the Hamilton County Health and Safety Hearing Board, 

respectively.   

 

DISCUSSION RE: CHAMBER OF COMMERCE PROJECT 

 

 Chairman Skillern reported that he had been contacted yesterday by a 

representative from the Chamber of Commerce regarding an upcoming project which 

would result in new jobs created in the County.  He stated that unless there was 

opposition by the Commission, this item would be heard during next week’s Regular 

Meeting and considered for adoption the following week at a Recessed Meeting on 

Wednesday, July 9. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 714-2 

 

 Commissioner Graham stated that Resolution No. 714-2 had been assigned to 

the Finance Committee.  As Chairman of this Committee, he requested that this item be 

heard as a Committee of the Whole in order for everyone to hear about a new project 



RECESSED MEETING AND 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

JUNE 25, 2014 
 

 

 6 

the County Clerk had volunteered to conduct regarding vehicle registration business. He 

commended the Clerk for the efficient manner in which he operated his office. 

  

County Clerk Bill Knowles reported that he had volunteered to be part of a pilot 

for a new project under the leadership of Tennessee’s Revenue Commissioner Richard 

Roberts. The program will implement a Print on Demand (POD) system of issuing State 

vehicle decals in Hamilton County. 

 

He explained that pressure sensitive stock supplied by the State will display the 

plate expiration year and print vinyl decals on tag receipts. The decals are to be peeled 

from the receipt and affixed to the plate by applying motorists. It will save State costs 

and eliminate inventory tasks in the Clerk’s office. It should also discourage decal theft 

from plates. 

  

Clerk Knowles reported the immediate cost to the County would total $15,200, 

and that the Department of Revenue would allot a one-time payment of $11,000 to the 

County toward the initial cost of POD equipment, installation, and training from Business 

Information Systems.  BIS provides IT software services and daily assistance to 92 of 

the State’s 95 counties.  

 



RECESSED MEETING AND 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

JUNE 25, 2014 
 

 

 7 

The Clerk also stated the POD method would eliminate the City of Chattanooga’s 

need to purchase an annual inventory of $5.00 stickers issued by the Clerk’s office 

under contract. He noted this Clerk service is a convenience to City motorists and 

produces a 5 percent collection fee from each sticker issued as permitted by TCA. 

 

Commissioner Fields asked whether information is available regarding what local 

savings had been projected.  Clerk Knowles responded that less time would be required 

to process transactions providing increased efficiency and as stated earlier would 

eliminate office record-keeping of some 300,000 decals annually.  

 

Chairman Skillern noted with interest the immediate savings to the City of 

Chattanooga eliminating their need to purchase $5.00 stickers each year.  

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Skillern asked for announcements from members of the Commission.  

 

Commissioner Fields congratulated Commissioner Haynes, who recently 

competed in the Senior Olympics and won three bronze medals. 

 



RECESSED MEETING AND 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

JUNE 25, 2014 
 

 

 8 

Attorney Taylor asked that Commission members meet with him in the adjacent 

conference room immediately following adjournment of today’s meeting to discuss a 

brief legal matter. 

 

Mayor Coppinger reported that the County had collected $2,200,000 from the 

sale of the old Ooltewah Elementary School property. He stated that in accordance with 

the previously adopted Resolution No. 1011-26, this funding would be held “in escrow 

for the benefit of the Hamilton County Department of Education and reserved for the 

purchase of future school sites, building of new schools, and/or renovation of existing 

schools, as may be approved by this county legislative body.” 

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Skillern asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There 

were none. 

 

 There being no further business, Chairman Skillern declared the meeting 

adjourned.   

 



RECESSED MEETING AND 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

JUNE 25, 2014 
 

 

 9 

Respectfully submitted: 

 
      

                                                                           _______________________________    
   William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 

 
Approved: 
 
 
________  
Date     Clerk’s Initials 
 



 

 

No. 714-29 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
July 16, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
   A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT APPLICATIONS FOR 

NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS,  THE BOND OF HAMILTON COUNTY 
911 EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS DISTRICT, AND OATH OF 
DEPUTY SHERIFF. 

 
   
WHEREAS, William F. (Bill) Knowles, Hamilton County Clerk, has certified according to the 

records of his office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled 
"HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS" have duly 
applied for the positions so sought; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled "THE BOND OF HAMILTON 
COUNTY 911 EMERGENCY COMMUNICATONS DISTRICT" have 
submitted for filing a bond as required in TCA Section 7-86-119; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

person named on the attached listing labeled "OATH OF DEPUTY SHERIFF" 
has taken the oath of office; and 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS: 
 

1. That the persons named on the listing labeled "HAMILTON COUNTY 
NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS" are hereby approved as applicants 
therefore; and 
 

2. That the persons named on the listing labeled "THE BOND OF HAMILTON 
COUNTY 911 EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS DISTRICT" is filed 
and made a matter of record; and  



 

 

 

 

 
 

3. That the person named on the listing labeled "OATH OF DEPUTY SHERIFF" 
is accepted and the oath therefor is approved as taken; and  
 

 
 4. That each such person named on the listing hereinabove mentioned (which listing 

is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) is hereby deemed to have 
been individually considered according to the particular matter relating thereto. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER PASSAGE. 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

July 16, 2014 

  
Date 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
JULY 16, 2014 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 1 

 
Jacquelyn R. A. White 4040 Mtn. Creek Rd. #902 Drivetime Car Sales Company, LLC. 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 6000 Shallowford Rd. 
 423-432-6750 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-242-4599 
 
Mimi C. Adams 1511 Vance Ave. Cash Express 
 Chattanooga, TN 37404 5513 Ringgold Rd. 
 423-602-7461 East Ridge, TN 37412 
  423-999-6376 
 
Christine K. Adams 562 Melwood Lane Self Employed 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 1335 Mackey Branch Drive, #103 
 423-893-5400 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-280-5176 
 
Carol J. Anderson 5903 Union Springs Road Stan Lanzo 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 744 McCallie Ave., Ste. 109 
 423-802-7414 Chattanooga, TN 37403 
  423-265-2434 
 
Ray F. Baswell 200 Manufacturers Rd., Unit 203 Power Solutions, LLC. 
 Chattanooga, TN 37405 1206 Pointe Center Dr., Ste. 130 
 423-677-1828 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-648-7672 
 
Cynthia D. Bibbs 317 #3 McBrien Road Self Employed 
 Chattanooga, TN 37411 Same 
 423-954-9025 Same 
  423-320-1112 
 
Julie C. Bowers 1308 Poe Rd. Spears, Moore, Rebman, & Williams 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 801 Broad Street, 6th Fl. 
 423-321-2566 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-756-7000 
 
Susan Claire Broome 584 Hidden Oaks Drive Second Presbyterian Church 
 Flintstone, GA 30725 700 Pine Street 
 423-883-6008 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-266-2828 
 
Joy Brown 236 Timber Ridge Trail Multiplan 
 Ringgold, GA 30736 6116 Shallowford Rd. 
 423-443-9314 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-855-9150 
 
Joni Browne 6862 Ivanwood Drive Stuart Heights Baptist Church 
 Hixson, TN 37343 1505 Cloverdale Drive 
 423-842-9023 Hixson, TN 37343 
  423-877-2643 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
JULY 16, 2014 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 2 

 
Kenneth F. Burke 103 Burke Lane Cains Wrecker Service 
 Chattanooga, TN 37405 608 Cherokee Blvd. 
 423-267-6196 Chattanooga, TN 37405 
  423-267-0031 
 
Ashley Burnett 8017 Selcer Road TVFCU 
 Hixson, TN 37343 9381 Dayton Pike 
 423-619-5233 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 
  423-634-7800 
 
Dianne Cagle 128 Hatlin Drive McNabb Center 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 6049 Shallowford Rd. 
 423-332-9985 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-266-6751 
 
Tina M. Campbell 2603 Ooltewah Ringgold Rd. Campbell & Associates, Inc. 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 751 East Fourth Street, Ste. 600 
 423-894-3220 Chattanooga, TN 37403 
  423-267-9718 
 
Pat Carr 3680 Stone Drive, SE. Spears, Moore, Rebman & Williams 
 Cleveland, TN 37323 801 Broad Street, 6th Floor 
 423-505-3136 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-756-7000 
 
John Cloutier 9678 Bowen Trail Gestamp Chattanooga 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 3063 Hickory Valley Rd. 
 423-314-1758 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-305-6343 
 
Theresa C. Coffman 9783 Berry Meadow Way Same 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 Same 
 423-314-5742 Same 
  Same 
 
Linda J. Cuyler 6001 Arlena Circle Erlanger Health Systems 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 975 East Third St. 
 423-892-0177 Chattanooga, TN 37403 
  423-778-4178 
 
Misty Davis 16 Haleys Cove Dr. The Wolford Firm, PLLC. 
 Chickamauga, GA 30707 320 N. Hawthorne Ave., Ste. 201 
 423-255-4527 Chattanooga, TN 37404 
  423-622-6461 
 
Elizabeth Dmochowski 110 Delray Avenue DeMoss Capital 
 Chattanooga, TN 37405 25 E. Main Street, Ste. 201 
 423-718-4819 Chattanooga, TN 37408 
  423-756-4800 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
JULY 16, 2014 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 3 

 
Constance S. Duckett 239 County Road 969 Infiniti of Chattanooga 
 Delano, TN 37325 7646 Lee Hwy. 
 423-462-17189 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-424-4040 
 
Caroline J. Edwards 1002 Gillespie Road United Tabernacle Ministries 
 Chattanooga, TN 37411 2418 Dodson Avenue 
 423-503-2306 Chattanooga, TN 37406 
  423-624-1037 
 
Nathan Evans 119 Clear Creek Road Evan Law Firm 
 Flintstone, GA 30725 600 Georgia Ave., Ste. 4 
 423-580-6616 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-634-6100 
 
Marcia W. Ewing 105 Gilmore Lane Unum 
 Hixson, TN 37343 1 Fountain Square 
 423-877-2662 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-287-2815 
 
Dustin J. Fairbanks 8218 Patterson Rd. The UPS Store 1995 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 2288 Gunbarrel Rd., Ste. 154 
 423-443-6693 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-499-4440 
 
Tongeia S. Farmer 2809 E. 26th Street SRR & Associates, P.C. 
 Chattanooga, TN 37407 1027 MLK Blvd. 
 423-544-1597 Chattanooga, TN 37403 
  423-266-0163 
 
Katherine Fisher 4305 Tennessee Ave., Apt. B Best Law Office 
 Chattanooga, TN 37409 707 Georgia Ave., Ste. 300 
 404-307-2881 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-424-0887 
 
Krystle Fister 1240 Brookfield Ct. EPB 
 Cleveland, TN 37312 10 W. MLK Blvd. 
 423-284-6489 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-648-3374 
 
Kellen Gibson 7249 E. Brainerd Rd., #151 GeStamp 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 3063 Hickory Valley Road 
 423-802-2601 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-305-6316 
 
Sara C. Godwin 6408 Fairest Drive Hamilton County Clerk 
 Harrison, TN 37341 6135 Heritage Park Drive 
 423-284-3852 Chattanooga, TN 37416 
  423-209-6525 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
JULY 16, 2014 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 4 

 
Trevor Guthrie 6951 Ski Club Rd. The UPS Store 1995 
 Harrison, TN 37341 2288 Gunbarrel Rd., Ste. 154 
 423-716-3654 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-499-4440 
 
Janess R. Higgins 2895 Davis Mountain Rd. Sherman & Reilly, Inc. 
 Palmer, TN 37365 400 West 33rd Street 
 423-949-7469 Chattanooga, TN 37410 
  423-756-5300 
 
Roderick M. Hines 4731 Rosemary Lane Hamilton County Clerk 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 625 Georgia Ave., Rm. 201 
 423-899-4090 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-209-6500 
 
Robin Holcomb 1105 Asher Street Spears, Moore, Rebman & Williams 
 Jasper, TN 37347 PO BOX 1749 
 423-942-5830 Chattanooga, TN 37401 
  423-756-7000 
 
Judith B. Hughes 7420 Twinbrook Drive Daisy Church of God 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 9555 Dayton Pike 
 423-892-5913 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 
  423-332-2558 
 
Margaret B. King 255 Misty Meadow Drive TVFCU 
 South Pittsburg, TN 37380 715 Market Street 
 423-837-8017 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-634-5500 
 
Laura Lundy 1827 Glenroy Avenue Tennessee Aquarium 
 Chattanooga, TN 37405 201 Chestnut Street 
 423-504-0033 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-785-2005 
 
Dustin Maples 3831 Morganton Rd. Drive Time 
 Maryville, TN 37801 6000 Shallowford Rd. 
 865-567-8657 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-242-4599 
 
Charles Alan McDonald, Jr. 3607 Crestline Place Harwood International Corporation 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 4713 Gann Store Rd. 
 423-877-4430 Hixson, TN 37343 
  423-870-5500 
 
Julie C. McLain 1412 Clearpt Circle Regions Bank 
 Hixson, TN 37343 601 Market St., 2nd Floor 
 423-413-7025 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-752-1574 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
JULY 16, 2014 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 5 

 
Kelli L. Melton 9144 Integra Hill Lane, Apt. 300 Gestamp Chattanooga 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 3063 Hickory Valley Rd. 
 423-823-0853 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-305-6367 
 
Colby Miller 3131 Mtn. Creek Rd.  #11B6 First Tennessee Bank 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 701 Market Street 
 423-463-9594 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-757-4253 
 
Fred H. Moore 101 East View Spears, Moore, Redman & Williams, P.C. 
 Lookout Mtn., TN 37350 801 Broad St., 6th Fl. 
 423-756-7000 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-756-7000 
 
Evelyn O. Moore 436 English Oaks Drive Volunteer Behavior Health 
 Hixson, TN 37343 413 Spring Street 
 423-875-6312 Chattanooga, TN 37405 
  423-825-4341 
 
Timothy E. Mott 1909 Blackford Street Hamilton County 
 Chattanooga, TN 37404 1600 East 3rd Street 
 423-622-8233 Chattanooga, TN 37404 
  423-209-5163 
 
Sigfrid Muina 121 Merriman Avenue Bass Technologies, LLC. 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 Same 
 423-991-1962 Same 
  Same 
 
Barry S. Patterson 9531 Mtn. Lake Drive McKee Foods Corporation 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 10260 McKee Rd. 
 N/A Collegedale, TN 37315 
  423-238-7111 
 
Stella P. Penney 11405 Armstrong Rd. Daisy Church of God 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 9555 Dayton Pike 
 423-332-2166 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 
  423-332-2558 
 
Franci D. Raines 12373 Nee Cee Drive Dental Center, PC 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 7003 Shallowford Rd. 
 423-332-7809 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  N/A 
 
Arianna Sanjines 801 Key Hulse Street Chattanooga Hardscapes, LLC. 
 Signal Mtn., TN 37377 7912 E. Brainerd Rd. 
 423-504-7914 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-580-5129 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
JULY 16, 2014 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 6 

 
Elizabeth L. Terry 144 Oakwood Drive Grant Konvalinka & Harrison 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 633 Chestnut St., Ste. 900 
 423-364-0778 Chattanooga, TN 37450 
  423-756-8400 
 
Cheri Thomas 730 Germantown Circle #629 Coyote Logistics 
 Chattanooga, TN 37412 1110 Market Street #315 
 423-667-2171 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-821-8044 
 
Tyler Thornton 255 California Lane GeStamp 
 Cleveland, TN 37311 3063 Hickory Valley Road 
 423-503-6499 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-305-6316 
 
Elaine L. Turner 4716 Pawnee Trail TCFCU 
 Chattanooga, TN 37411 6020 Relocation Way 
 423-894-4851 Ooltewah, TN 37363 
  423-634-7900 
 
Deborah A. Walker 10831 Harbor Rd. WRCB-TV 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 900 Whitehall Rd. 
 423-332-7151 Chattanooga, TN 37405 
  423-267-5412 
 
Tyler C. Weeks 933 Joe Robertson Rd. Morpho Trust USA 
 Rocky Face, GA 30740 6231 Perimeter Drive., Ste. 117 
 706-463-0567 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-475-5361 
 
Suzette M. White 8526 Maplewood Trail Rick Davis Super Cars 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 3307 Ringgold Rd. 
 423-595-3481 East Ridge, TN 37412 
  423-490-7654 
 

















 

 

No. 714-21 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
July 16, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE 
PERIOD OF MAY 1, 2014, THROUGH MAY 31, 2014, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY 
MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department was authorized to make purchases of petroleum products 

on the open market; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the following purchases were made between May 1, 2014, through May 31, 2014.  
 
 May 2, 2014, $24,623.59 for 8,453 gallons of E-10 gasoline at 2.9130 per gallon from 

Pilot Travel Centers, LLC.  
 
 May 6, 2014, $23,390.26 for 7,964 gallons of diesel fuel at 2.9370 per gallon from Jat 

Oil, Inc. 
 
 May 7, 2014, $1,757.40 for 600 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 2.9290 per 

gallon from Jat Oil, Inc. 
 
 May 7, 2014, $8,734.28 for 2,982 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 2.9290 per 

gallon from Jat Oil, Inc. 
  
 May 15, 2014, $24,702.46 for 8,476 gallons of E-10 gasoline at 2.9144  per gallon 

from Mansfield Oil Company. 
 
 May 16, 2014, $24,790.50 for 8,454 gallons of E-10 gasoline at 2.9324 per gallon from 

Pilot Travel Centers, LLC. 
 
 May 22, 2014, $24,536.51 for 8,413 gallons of E-10 gasoline at 2.9165 per gallon from 

Pilot Travel Centers, LLC. 
 
  
  
 
 



 

 

 

 

  
 May 23, 2014, $4,486.20 for 1,483 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 3.0251 per 

gallon from Parman Energy. 
 
    
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That the above purchases be ratified in the best interest of Hamilton County, and the County Mayor is 
authorized to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

July 16, 2014 

  
Date 

 







 

 

No. 714-22 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
July 16, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF POTTERS INDUSTRIES, LLC FOR ONE (1) 
YEAR CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING AUGUST 17, 2014, THROUGH AUGUST 16, 
2015, FOR REFLECTIVE GLASS BEADS FOR THE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT AND 
AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO 
IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) year 

contract pricing for reflective glass beads for the Highway Department / 
Traffic Shop; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the bid from Potters Industries, LLC amounting to $570.00 per container was 

considered to be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Potters Industries, LLC for one (1) year contract pricing beginning August 17, 
2014, through August 16, 2015, for reflective glass beads for the Highway Department is 
hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County 
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

July 16, 2014 

  
Date 

 























 

 

No. 714-23 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
July 16, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ALL DOCUMENTS 
NECESSARY TO CONVEY RIGHT OF WAY, PERMANENT DRAINAGE AND TEMPORARY 
CONSTRUCTION EASEMENTS TO THE CITY OF CHATTANOOGA TO FACILITATE 
ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS FOR PORTIONS OF BONNY OAKS DRIVE AND 
VOLKSWAGEN DRIVE, KNOWN AS THE VOLKSWAGEN STATE INDUSTRIAL ACCESS 
(SIA) EXPANSION PROJECT. 
 
WHEREAS, Hamilton County (County) owns certain property, known as the Tyner Redoubt Soccer 

Complex and property owned jointly with the City of Chattanooga (City) known as the 
Enterprise South Industrial Park, with frontage located on Bonny Oaks Drive and 
Volkswagen Drive; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Tennessee Department of Transportation (TDOT) has requested from the County a 

donation of right of way, permanent drainage and temporary construction easements to 
facilitate improvements of said roadways, which once complete, will be maintained by 
the City in accordance with the attached or similar Easement and Warranty Deed 
documents; and, 

 
WHEREAS, roadway improvements and location of said right of way and easements have been 

reviewed by representatives of the City and County and will have no effect on the 
current or future use of the property; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  it is in the best interest of Hamilton County to donate said right of way and easements 

to facilitate roadway improvements for the Volkswagen SIA Expansion project, being 
funded by the State of Tennessee, to benefit and further enhance economic 
development within the Enterprise South Industrial Park. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION  
ASSEMBLED: 

That the County Mayor is hereby authorized to execute all documents necessary to 
convey right of way, permanent drainage and temporary construction easements to the 
City of Chattanooga, in accordance with the attached or similar Easement and 
Warranty Deed documents, on portions of property owned by Hamilton County and 
jointly with the City of Chattanooga, in order to facilitate roadway improvements for 



 

 

 

 

the Volkswagen State Industrial Access (SIA) Expansion project at the Enterprise 
South Industrial Park. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

July 16, 2014 

  
Date 

 

















 

 

No. 714-24 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
July 16, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL OF PLAYCORE HOLDINGS, INC. dba 
PLAYCORE WISCONSIN, INC. & GAMETIME FOR PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT FOR 
LOOKOUT VALLEY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL AMOUNTING TO $34,998.00 AND 
AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO 
IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, proposals were received in response to public advertisement for playground 

equipment for Lookout Valley Elementary School for the Recreation 
Department; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the proposal from Playcore Holdings, Inc. dba Playcore Wisconsin, Inc. & 

GameTime was considered to be the best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the proposal of Playcore Holdings, Inc. dba Playcore Wisconsin, Inc. & GameTime for 
playground equipment for Lookout Valley Elementary School amounting to $34,998.00 is 
hereby accepted, said proposal being the best proposal received, and authorizing the County 
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

July 16, 2014 

  
Date 

 



Playground Equipment for Lookout Valley Elementary School
Recreation Department
June 26, 2014 10:30 A.M.

Vendors: Rich Playcore Bliss First Place Great
Construction (HC) Products & Finish Southern

Inc. Services Inc. Recreation

Total Bid Price: $37,966.00 $34,998.00 $32,702.62 $35,000.00 $34,995.41
Alternate Proposal: $29,993.00

Delivery: 45 days ARO 7 weeks ARO 90 days 50 days ARO 45-50 days
del of equip. complete install del of equip complete install del of equip

Request For Bids:
Newspaper Ad: 6/6/2014
Vendor Notification: 136
Vendor Response: 5
Budgeted: Discretionary/

Bond Funds

Recommendation: The GameTime proposal contained the best combination of playground 
features, as well as being considered the best value for the money.
Playground installation to be completed within seven (7) weeks.



 

 

No. 714-25 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
July 16, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR ON BEHALF OF 
HAMILTON COUNTY TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, 
OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 
DEPARTMENT TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE A CONTINUATION CONTRACT 
FOR $537,000.00 WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH FOR THE 
PROVISION OF BIOTERRORISM PREPAREDNESS ACTIVITIES FOR THE 12 MONTH 
TIME PERIOD BEGINNING JULY 1, 2014 – JUNE 30, 2015.  
 
WHEREAS, the overall objective of the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department 
  is to protect the public’s health; and, 
 
WHEREAS,   preparedness activities are necessary to achieve this objective; and,  
 
 
WHEREAS, these activities are for the protection and well-being of the citizens of Hamilton
   County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the County Mayor be authorized to sign the attached continuation contract accepting 
$537,000.00 in State funds for the purpose of providing Bioterrorism preparedness activities 
for the time period of July 1, 2014 – June 30, 2015.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

July 16, 2014 

  
Date 

 























































 

 

No. 714-26 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
July 16, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN AN AGREEMENT 
IN THE AMOUNT OF $50,000 WITH THE CHATTANOOGA AREA URBAN LEAGUE 
TO PROVIDE CERTAIN CONTRACT COMPLIANCE SERVICES FOR A CONTRACT 
PERIOD BEGINNING JULY 1, 2014 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2015 
 
WHEREAS,  under the direction of the County Mayor and through the Equal Employment 

Opportunity (EEO) office and the Development Department, the County 
performs certain functions related to developing, implementing, and 
maintaining procedures in accordance with the Hamilton County EEO policy 
and performs certain functions related to EEO and affirmative action 
compliance; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  the County seeks the assistance of the Chattanooga Area Urban League 

(CAUL) to enable the County to prevent discrimination and to maximize 
economic opportunities for minority businesses and individuals by performing 
certain services for the County as set forth in the project agreement; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  the agreement will cover the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015 and will not 

exceed $50,000; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

The County Mayor is hereby authorized to sign an agreement (copy available 
upon request) with the CAUL upon the terms and conditions contained therein 
for an amount not to exceed $50,000, in previously budgeted funds. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

July 16, 2014 

  
Date 

 



 

 

No. 714-27 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
July 16, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE PAYMENT OF $20,000.00 TO BRANDON CARTER AND 
HIS ATTORNEYS, HOUSTON & ZIEBOLD FOR BODILY INJURY INCURRED AS A 
RESULT OF AN AUTOMOBILE ACCIDENT WITH A HAMILTON COUNTY PARKS & 
RECREATION VEHICLE. 
 
WHEREAS, Hamilton County Government operates various vehicles for road use in the delivery of 

various services throughout the County; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Parks & Recreation Department operated a vehicle on Hixson 

Pike on September 3, 2013 which collided with claimant’s vehicle that was traveling 
on Adams Road; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County may be legally responsible for said damage; and; 
 
WHEREAS,  the County has reached an agreement for settlement of bodily injury related to this claim 

with claimant and his attorney, totaling $20,000.00; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the County has funds budgeted through its self-insurance program to handle such 

claims. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION NOW ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the Board of Commissioners hereby authorizes the payment of $20,000.00 to Brandon Carter and 
his attorney, Meredith Ziebold, Houston & Ziebold for full and final settlement of this bodily injury 
claim arising from accident on Hixson Pike and Longview Road in Hixson, Tennessee on September 3, 
2013. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

July 16, 2014 

  
Date 

 



 

 

No. 714-28
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
July 16, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM A-1 AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT & R-2 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO R-1 SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2016 OOLTEWAH-RINGGOLD ROAD 
 
WHEREAS, Mike Moon/Byron Defoor petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County 
Regional Planning Commission to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District & R-2 
Residential District to R-1 Single Family Residential District, property located at 2016 
Ooltewah-Ringgold Road , and said Planning Commission after hearing 
recommended that this petition be approved; and 
 
WHEREAS, Mike Moon/Byron Defoor requested that the County Commission 
consider said petition and notice has been published in a newspaper in general 
circulation in Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public hearing 
on July 16, 2014, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required by law, and 
such hearing having been held. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County be 
amended, subject to: 1) A 25’ landscape buffer along Leslie Sandidge Drive & 
property line bordering East Colony Subdivision to be installed as the subdivision is 
being built. 2) Applicant will plant street trees at every rear lot corner along Leslie 
Sandidge Drive. 3) No driveways to access Leslie Sandidge Drive. 4) Attempt to enter 
off Ooltewah-Ringgold Road.  Applicant will apply for a permit from TDOT and commit 
to make best efforts to bring the subdivision entrance in from Ooltewah-Ringgold 
Road. 5) Applicant will limit the number of homes to a maximum of 60 dwelling lots.  
Applicant states if there should be more than 60 lots that they will be community lots. 
6)  The 6 lots that have common property lines with East Colony Subdivision will be 
restricted to 1 & ½ stories in height in an effort to preserve the view from East Colony. 
7) Applicant will have sidewalks within the new Subdivision along the new streets.  



 

 

 

 

Applicant will install these as homes are built. 8) Applicant will provide decorative 
lighting within new Subdivision, to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District & R-2 
Residential District to R-1 Single Family Residential District, property located at 2016 
Ooltewah-Ringgold Road. An unplatted tract of land located at 2016 Ooltewah-
Ringgold Road, being the property described in Deed Book 9411, Page 519, ROHC.  
Tax Map #160-006.01 as shown on the attached map. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

July 16, 2014 

  
Date 

 














	7-16-14 Agenda with Notes
	714- S_Report_Juvenile Court Clerk Report_979_Juvenile Court Clerk Report - May 2014
	714-_S_Minutes_July 2 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes_987_07-02-14 Regular
	DELEGATIONS

	714-_S_Minutes_June 25 2014 Recessed Meeting and Agenda Session Minutes_986_06-25-14 Recessed-Agenda
	714-29_R_Bill Knowles_Notary Public_988_07-16-14
	714-29_S_Bill Knowles_Notary Public_988_07-16-14 A
	714-21_R_Albert Kiser_Fuel May 2014_913_Fuel Resolution May 2014
	714-21_S_Albert Kiser_Fuel May 2014_913_Fuel Resolution May 2014 Supporting Docs
	714-22_R_Todd Leamon_Reflective Glass Beads_975_RES. REFLECTIVE GLASS BEADS
	714-22_S_Todd Leamon_Reflective Glass Beads_975_REFLECTIVE GLASS BEADS
	714-23_R_Todd Leamon_Easements for roadway improvements for the  SIA expansion project_981_Res VW SIA project
	714-23_S_Todd Leamon_Easements for roadway improvements for the  SIA expansion project_981_Res   attachments 7 2 14
	714-24_R_Don Allen_Playground Equipment for Lookout Valley Elementary_980_RES. PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT FOR LOOKOUT VALLEY ELEMENTARY
	714-24_S_Don Allen_Playground Equipment for Lookout Valley Elementary_980_Playground Equipment for Lookout Valley Elementary 6-26-14
	Sheet1

	714-25_R_Becky Barnes_Public Health Emergency Preparedness _974_2014-2015 Bioterrorism Preparedness CERP Resolution
	714-25_S_Becky Barnes_Public Health Emergency Preparedness _974_2014-2015 Bioterrorism Preparedness Contract CERP
	714-26_R_Dan Saieed_Urban League Contract_968_Urban League Contract - 2014
	714-27_R_Rheubin Taylor_Settlement of Brandon Carter Lawsuit_982_Settlement of Brandon Carter Lawsuit
	714-28_R_John Bridger_Hamilton County Zoning _984_Re-zone Ooltewah-Ringgold Road Resolution
	714-28_S_John Bridger_Hamilton County Zoning _984_RPA Resolution on 2016 Ooltewah-Ringgold Road

